
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appletonwi.gov

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, February 5, 2025

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

25-0033 Common Council Meeting Minutes of January 15, 2025

CC Minutes 1-15-25.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

25-0041 Confirmation of Committee Appointments

 

APA Appt Memo 2-5-2025.pdf

Sustainability & Climate Panel Appt 2-5-2025.pdf

Attachments:

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 1/31/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25383
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e0b962c3-cef9-4564-a3b2-c3152e47b402.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25391
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4447cbcc-8546-40c3-80e8-a442ff4c0e96.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dcb98a1d-4c6e-422c-b3f0-8c8d3538dc1b.pdf


February 5, 2025Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

24-1616 Approve Hilton Appleton Paper Valley Permanent Occupancy Permit and 

Sign Permit 

Hilton Occupancy Permit Application.pdf

Hilton Skywalk Parking Signs Application.pdf

Hilton Occupancy Permit Application-Condition of Approval.pdf

Hilton Skywalk Parking Signs Application-Condition of Approval.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

1/6/25 Municipal Services 

Committee

held

1/20/25 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

25-0016 Request to accept Wisconsin Department of Transportation Signals and 

ITS Standalone Program (SISP) grant in the amount of $576,000.

SISP Grant Acceptance Request_RidgeviewRichmond 01-20-2025.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/20/25 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

1/20/25 Finance Committee recommended for approval

25-0017 Approve Parking changes on Emmers Dr and Schaefer St by East High 

School (follow-up to a 6-month evaluation)

East HS Parking Changes on Emmers & Schaefer (post eval).pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/20/25 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

25-0018 Approve Parking changes on Lightning Dr by Fire Station 6 (follow-up to a 

6-month evaluation)

Station 6 Parking Changes on Lightning Dr (post eval).pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/20/25 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 1/31/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25316
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=22f1a480-59eb-49dd-aa56-7eb5734f7545.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1c62aea3-90ad-41f1-ae5c-0ffb2a4649e5.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d786e3ec-862e-41fd-a2d2-dbc4faee00d5.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8281fc73-0f7a-49cd-8e2c-241fd396080e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25366
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=50c23285-3299-406b-8e0b-75491bb94b36.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25367
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=52380c78-cf31-4781-856e-07d29967cd85.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25368
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=43413f51-6390-4802-8cd0-e759380d8096.pdf


February 5, 2025Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

24-1126 Operator License for Kelly Arndt.

Kelly Arndt Application.pdf

Kelly Arndt Clerk Letter.pdf

Kelly Arndt PD Letter.pdf

Kelly Arndt Appeal Memo.pdf

UPDATE  Operator License Renewal Application of Kelly Arndt.pdf

Kelly Arndt Additional Documentation.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

Kelly Arndt was present and requested the item be held until the next regularly 

scheduled meeting on January 8, 2025.

1/8/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

Kelly Arndt was present and addressed the committee.

The Operator License was held until the January 22nd meeting to allow the 

applicant to provide documentation of rehabilitation.

1/22/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for denial

24-1496 Operator License for Katherine Neubert.

Katherine Neubert Application.pdf

Katherine Neubert Clerk's Letter.pdf

Katherine Neubert denial letter.pdf

Operator License Application of Katherine Neubert.pdf

Katherine Neubert Additional Documentation.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

1/8/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

Katherine Neubert was present and addressed the committee.

The Operator License was held until the January 22nd meeting to allow the 

applicant to provide documentation of rehabilitation.

1/22/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for denial

The Motion to deny was withdrawn by Alderpersons Siebers and Fenton

1/22/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

The Motion to hold was withdrawn by Alderpersons Fenton and Schultz

1/22/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 1/31/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24826
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6c150880-f2f8-4ef2-8747-9fae812ef574.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f2778100-9dc4-4deb-b6b5-c68eca0a4511.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ba0f6d35-a20a-4470-ab1d-352dd7d67715.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3b34b21b-a691-4fdc-bb4a-c89da707fc8f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=689bb799-b2df-4f00-991e-67c5635599ea.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=29aa0104-25d9-41e1-97cb-e3f9046cb1ab.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25196
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=69aecdf9-95f9-400a-8aa2-7c6f6a920455.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a2008f82-3fe2-4784-8aad-b797d4f510c9.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9bd21881-3712-4c32-8544-7ab27ab274c5.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=51855e8b-1ff8-484d-9221-6cbd417553cd.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0871a242-1884-4b45-9c16-1f8ad23e3a3a.pdf


February 5, 2025Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

25-0002 Cigarette, Tobacco, and Electronic Vaping Device License application for 

A-Z Tobacco Inc, Safwan Alboushi Aldabbagh, Agent, located at 201 W. 

Northland Ave Ste K. 

A-Z Tobacco Inc.CTV.1.8.25.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/22/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

25-0003 Cigarette, Tobacco, and Electronic Vaping Device License application for 

Rehan Grocery LLC d/b/a Halal International Market, Siyar Abdullah, 

Agent, located at 2310 W. College Ave Ste D.

Halal Intl Market.CTV.1.9.25.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/22/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

25-0004 Secondhand Article Dealer License renewal application for Heid Music, 

Todd Heid, Agent, located at 308 E. College Ave, contingent upon 

approval from the Health department. 

 

Heid Music.Secondhand Article Renewal.1.10.25.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/22/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

25-0005 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for La 

Bodega Nightclub LLC d/b/a La Bodega Lounge, Juan 

Santiago-Hernandez, Agent, located at 531 W. College Ave, contingent 

upon approval from the Health and Inspections departments. 

 

La Bodega Lounge.Alcohol.Class B_Beer_Reserve Liquor.12.20.24.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/22/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

25-0011 Cigarette, Tobacco, and Electronic Vaping Device License application for 

Top Dogz Vape Shop LLC d/b/a Top Dogz Vape Shop, Jennifer Peters, 

Agent, located at 208 E Wisconsin Ave, for new location. 

 

Top Dogs Vape Shop.CTV.1.15.25.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/22/25 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 1/31/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25352
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0e610efc-686e-4693-9c48-a2d1a46c6c85.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25353
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4bbe68ec-132e-4ea8-8239-693cd838d10d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25354
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3823207d-18a5-4bd9-8e17-b0b404daed72.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25355
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6fc2d448-f51e-4b56-9842-51dbb26eeddf.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25361
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ada39394-71b5-486a-8349-582e6fb09c7c.pdf


February 5, 2025Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

25-0040 Request to approve resolution for Emergency Sodium Hypochlorite Tank 

Replacement at Appleton Water Treatment Facility.

RESOLUTION AWTF HypochloriteTankReplacement FINAL.pdf

250128 Finance Memo - Emergency Hypochlorite Tank Replacement_FINAL.pdf

0046 - Tank Repair - DG Memo to Finance 01-25-2025.pdf.pdf

Attachments:

25-0023 Request to award Sole Source Purchase of Appleton Water Treatment 

Facility Emergency Generator Control Equipment to Fabick Power 

Systems for a cost of $653,837 with a contingency of $46,163 for a total 

not to exceed $700,000. 

Fabick CAT Sole Source - Finance.pdf

250115_SoleSource_Fabick_Generator_Controls.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

1/20/25 Finance Committee recommended for approval

25-0020 Request to approve the following 2025 Budget amendment:

CEA Capital Projects

Federal Grants +$134,180

Vehicles +$134,180

To record EECGB grant award and associated expense (2/3 vote of 

council required).

2025 Grant Budget Transfer.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/20/25 Finance Committee recommended for approval

25-0021 Request to accept Non-State Grant Award of $274,000 and approve the 

following 2025 Budget Amendment:

Facilities Capital Projects

Misc State Aids +$274,000

Library Project +$274,000

To record the grant funds and associated project expense (2/3 vote of 

council required).

NSG Request for Approval 1-8-2025.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 1/31/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25390
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e020d751-ff43-428b-b751-b7c46efe188b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=63a860a6-021c-4394-a70d-599aa290f7d0.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c94782f2-2093-429b-954f-e5fcc9c93a29.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25373
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b15f44e5-c4ec-4da4-b43e-43716ae91ca5.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b843495f-c570-4414-87cb-ababf211dda3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25370
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e0470a4a-0826-4de3-bd0d-80e006502eb0.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25371
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=525608b1-37d3-4730-b951-cfb6e1ad9325.pdf


February 5, 2025Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

1/20/25 Finance Committee recommended for approval

25-0022 Request to award Sole Source Contract to Groome Industrial Services for 

WWTP Hydroblasting service in the amount not to exceed $30,000.

Groome 2025 Sole Source - Finance.pdf

250115_SoleSource_Groome_Hydroblasting.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

1/20/25 Finance Committee recommended for approval

25-0024 Request to award Unit H-25 Lawe Street Bridge over Fox River Repairs 

project to Norcon Corporation in the amount of $203,946 with a 10% 

contingency of $20,394.60, for a project total not to exceed $224,340.60.

H-25 Contract Award Form and Bid Tabs.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

1/20/25 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

O. ORDINANCES

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. CLOSED SESSION

Page 6 City of Appleton Printed on 1/31/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25372
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=101fb136-1b9e-470e-9b8b-5944d90de4d6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=549cd3d8-9d1f-48ec-9f6e-afe48321f0a1.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25374
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=02290a1d-5638-437a-aebb-86f1a9cd6002.pdf


February 5, 2025Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

25-0042 The Common Council may go into closed session according to State 

Statute §19.85(1)(e) (deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 

properties, investing of public funds or conducting other specific public 

business when competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed 

session) for the purpose of deliberating or negotiating items related to the 

potential investment of public funds for a development project on the city's 

north side. Upon conclusion of the closed session, the Common Council 

will then reconvene into open session.

 

T. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.  

Remote meeting attendance may be permitted pursuant to Section 2-29 of the Appleton 

Municipal Code and Rules of Council.

Page 7 City of Appleton Printed on 1/31/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25392


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appletonwi.gov

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, January 15, 2025

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 7:00 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Schultz.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson Alfheim appeared virtually.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn 

Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and Mayor Jake Woodford

Present: 13 - 

Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson 

Chad Doran

Excused: 3 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All Departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

24-1650 Common Council Meeting Minutes of December 18, 2024

 

CC Minutes 12-18-24.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Hayden, that the 

Minutes be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn 

Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff and Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim

12 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25350
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7b856ab2-c765-4616-b6d9-c73ab5c35d8b.pdf


January 15, 2025Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Excused: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

25-0010 Confirmation of Appointment Amendment for CDBG Advisory Committee

 

Memo CDBG Appt.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Hayden, that the 

Appointment be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn 

Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff and 

Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim

11 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

3 - 

Abstained: Alderperson Vaya Jones and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

The following spoke regarding Item 21-0420 Alcohol License Application for Delaire's, 

LLC:

Jaime Pappenfuss, 627 S Mueller St

Elice Ronsman, 901 Saunders Rd, Kaukauna

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25360
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a127a6dc-e0b3-46e9-bf71-b9d1be102fd6.pdf


January 15, 2025Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-0420 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for 

Delaires LLC d/b/a Delaire's, David Boulanger, Agent, located at 823 W. 

College Ave, contingent upon approval from the Health and Inspections 

departments.

Delaire's.Alcohol.Class 

B_Beer_Reserve_Liquor.4.10.24.REDACTED.pdf

Delaire's Attachment.pdf

Documents distributed by Alder Van Zeeland 10.23.24.pdf

APD Delaire's letter to S&L 11.27.24.docx

OEO to Appleton City Clerk re Holding Licensing Hearing - Delaire's 

LLC.pdf

2025 Delaire's Business Plan.pdf

Delaire's 2025 Alcohol License Questionnaire (Updated) - signed.pdf

Attachments:

This Item was referred to the Safety and Licensing Committee by Alderperson 

Siebers.

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

:

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Fenton moved, Alderperson Hayden seconded, to approve the 

balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn 

Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff and Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

24-1613 Award 2025 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Ongoing Field 

Screening Services Contract to Westwood Infrastructure, Inc. in an 

amount not to exceed $35,000

MSC Award Memo 2025 IDDE Field Screening Services 

01-06-2024.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 3City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24121
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=573aade9-ab87-4fea-9b8c-135b6b7f7f18.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=906a7738-d3f7-475c-810f-5d6cb437c299.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=780b90c5-b9d3-401a-9efe-c475e4260c40.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=42a97bff-78e1-4f20-9e0c-e691687e47c9.docx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b345254e-5ed8-4848-b7fd-7fb4800b92c7.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=470ec4fb-394d-4908-a508-640f0b82d0c6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=58cdd3a8-a9b4-47ad-a470-7417a1d04de3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25313
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5acc3ede-ebbe-462e-92df-86e05c78f7ad.pdf


January 15, 2025Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

24-1614 Award M-25 2025 Materials Testing & Contaminated Soils Contract to 

Westwood Infrastructure, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $100,000

MSC M-25 Contract Award Memo 01-06-2025.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1615 Approve Long Term Temporary Occupancy Permit to Integrity 

Environmental Services for dumpster in parking lane of Superior St north 

of College Ave, from 2/6/2025 through 11/30/2025.

MSC LTT Occupancy Permit_Integrity Enviro_Superior St 

Dumpster_01-06-2025.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

24-1611 Secondhand Article Dealer License renewal application for T&S Sports 

d/b/a Play It Again Sports, Michael Milloy, Agent, located at 611 W 

Northland Ave, contingent upon approval from the Health department. 

Play It Again Sports.Secondhand Article 

Renewal.12.10.24.REDACTED.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

24-1623 Request to approve Contract Amendment #1 with Restoration Systems 

Inc. for Green Ramp Barrier Panel Emergency Repairs Phase 1, in an 

increase of $17,225, for a new not-to-exceed contract total of $64,455.

Finance Memo Green Ramp Phase 1 Repairs Contract Amend 

1_01-06-2025.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1624 Request to award the 2025 Interior Finishes and Furniture Project - 

Community Development to Chet Wesenberg Architect, LLC. for a 

sole-source contract not-to-exceed $67,400.

2025 Community Development AE Services.pdf

Sole Source Community Dev.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 4City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25314
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=207e7728-24fa-4c4c-904c-d3c1a40f8da7.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25315
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b96ed8c7-0774-480d-a77a-84df3c6cdafb.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25311
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3cb934e9-7948-409d-8562-bc38efba2c7a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25323
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c779fb77-f89a-496f-b555-56044df5ee8b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25324
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=98516e59-74b5-4565-ac16-832420b2111c.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=63b71864-e04f-440c-96af-8dea4474672e.pdf


January 15, 2025Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

24-1607 Request to approve City Program Funding for 2025 Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding as specified in the attached 

document

CDBG City Allocations Prelim Rec Memo to CDC 1-8-25.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

24-1635 Approve Contract Amendment #1 to Applied Technologies Inc. as a part 

of the AWWTP Column and Plank Storage Upgrades for additional 

design and construction management services in the amount of $4,900 

increasing the contract amount from $25,500 to $30,400.

 

250103_ATI_SSB_WallPlankModif Contract Amendment #1.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

CLOSED SESSIONS.

Page 5City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25307
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3f6f5ada-58bf-45c8-8fbd-38047f9b4a75.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25335
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b84fba25-26dd-428b-9d3e-a40088f23c52.pdf


January 15, 2025Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

25-0001 The Common Council may go into closed session according to State 

Statute §19.85(1)(e) (deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 

properties, investing of public funds or conducting other specific public 

business when competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed 

session) for the purpose of deliberating or negotiating items related to 

the disposition of land in the Downtown District.  Upon conclusion of the 

closed session, the Common Council will then reconvene into open 

session.

 

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Van Zeeland that the 

Common Council convene into Closed Session at 7:20 p.m.  Roll Call. Motion 

carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn 

Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff and Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

ADJOURNT.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Wolff to reconvene into open 

session at 7:47 p.m.  Roll Call. Motion carried 11/0.

No action was taken in Closed Session.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Siebers, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 7:47 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn 

Smith, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Patti Heffernan, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Nate Wolff and Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim

11 - 

Excused: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

4 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 6City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25351








 

 

Type of Sign 
 Ground Sign  Awning Sign  Changeable Copy Sign (No animation) 
 Wall Mounted Sign  Temporary Sign (Sandwich, Etc.)  Painted Wall Sign 
 Projecting Sign  Canopy Sign  Other  
 Window Sign  Portable Sign  
 

 Zoning District 
 C2- General Commercial 
 CO- Commercial Office 
 AG- Agriculture 

 M1- Industrial Park  
 M2- General Industrial  

 

 PI- Public Institution 
 P- Park District 
 CBD- Central Business District 

Dimensions/Other Information  
Width of Sign: Height of Sign:  

Height Above Normal Grade: Underclearance:  

Projecting into ROW: Distance to Side Lot Line (5’ Min): 

Setback from R-O-W: Setback from Driveway: 

Design Exception (Sec. 23-529): Material: 
 

WALL SIGN DETAILS (Wall/Painted Signs Only) 
 Proposed Size 

Width x Height (ft) 
Proposed 

Area of Sign (sq. ft.) 
Existing Size 

Width x Height (ft) 
Existing 

Area of Sign (sq. ft.) 
 

Area of Entire Wall 

Wall North               X  X   

Wall East               X  X   

Wall West               X  X   

Wall South               X  X   

 
 

Electrical Information of Sign 

 Internal  Florescent  LED  Message Center 
 External  Incandescent  Electronic  Neon 
 

UL Design No:  Electrical Contractor:  
 

Office Information  

BZA Variance Date: Street Occupancy Permit No.: 
 

Sign Contractor Contractor Address Contractor Phone Contractor Email 
    

 

Applicant hereby agrees to comply with all laws and regulations of the State of Wisconsin and of the Ordinances of the City of Appleton. Applicant further 

agrees in consideration of the issuance of the permit to save the City of Appleton harmless for any injury or damage caused by reason of the erection or 

maintenance of the sign or signboard. If any sign erected pursuant to the permit occupies public street right-of-way, it is subject to all of the provisions of 

Wis. State. 60.045, but without charge or bond. This permit as applied for is granted subject to revocation when any law or regulation of the State of 

Wisconsin or the Ordinance of the City of Appleton is violated or when inspection reveals that the sign or signboard creates a hazard. Permit fee is 

nonrefundable. 

Name of Applicant:  Phone: 

Address:  Inspector Approval:  

 
white- office   yellow- applicant 

Site Address:      ______________________ 
 Single Tenant  

Business Name: ______________________ 
 Multi- Tenant 
 

City of Appleton 
            100 North Appleton Street, Appleton WI 54911 
               Phone: (920) 832-6411  Fax: (920) 832-6464 

 

SIGN PERMIT 
 

Permit No.:      ___________ 
 

Key No.:          ___________ 
 

Receipt No.:    ___________ 
 

Date:               ___________ 
 

 

  Permit Fee:               Penalty Fee          A separate permit is required for each proposed sign. 

Estimated Cost: _________ 333 W. College Ave.
Hilton Paper Valley Hotel

96 48

ACM Panels

(2)

96

96 48

32

32 370sqft

370sqft48 64sqft ish

64sqft ish

N/A

Fastsigns of Appleton 135 S. Casaloma Dr. 920.954.9778 ariele.mcginn@fastsigns.com

Ariele McGinn 920.954.9778
135 S. Casaloma Dr. 

$2,350







*Condition of approval: Reconsideration of the Street Occupancy and Sign Permits shall be made upon 
completion of the Parking Utility Wayfinding, Marketing and Strategic Planning study and may result in 
possible revocation of the Sign and Street Occupancy Permits and removal of the sign.



Type of Sign 
 Ground Sign  Awning Sign  Changeable Copy Sign (No animation)

 Wall Mounted Sign  Temporary Sign (Sandwich, Etc.)  Painted Wall Sign
 Projecting Sign  Canopy Sign  Other
 Window Sign  Portable Sign

Zoning District
 C2- General Commercial
 CO- Commercial Office
 AG- Agriculture

 M1- Industrial Park
 M2- General Industrial

 PI- Public Institution
 P- Park District
 CBD- Central Business District

Dimensions/Other Information 
Width of Sign: Height of Sign:  

Height Above Normal Grade: Underclearance: 

Projecting into ROW: Distance to Side Lot Line (5’ Min): 

Setback from R-O-W: Setback from Driveway: 

Design Exception (Sec. 23-529): Material: 

WALL SIGN DETAILS (Wall/Painted Signs Only) 
Proposed Size 

Width x Height (ft) 
Proposed 

Area of Sign (sq. ft.) 
Existing Size 

Width x Height (ft) 
Existing 

Area of Sign (sq. ft.) Area of Entire Wall 

Wall North       X X 

Wall East  X X 

Wall West  X X 

Wall South        X X 

Electrical Information of Sign
 Internal  Florescent  LED  Message Center
 External  Incandescent  Electronic  Neon

UL Design No: Electrical Contractor: 

Office Information 

BZA Variance Date: Street Occupancy Permit No.: 

Sign Contractor Contractor Address Contractor Phone Contractor Email 
    

Applicant hereby agrees to comply with all laws and regulations of the State of Wisconsin and of the Ordinances of the City of Appleton. Applicant further 

agrees in consideration of the issuance of the permit to save the City of Appleton harmless for any injury or damage caused by reason of the erection or 

maintenance of the sign or signboard. If any sign erected pursuant to the permit occupies public street right-of-way, it is subject to all of the provisions of 

Wis. State. 60.045, but without charge or bond. This permit as applied for is granted subject to revocation when any law or regulation of the State of 

Wisconsin or the Ordinance of the City of Appleton is violated or when inspection reveals that the sign or signboard creates a hazard. Permit fee is 

nonrefundable. 

Name of Applicant:  Phone: 

Address:  Inspector Approval*: 

Site Address:      ______________________ 
 Single Tenant

Business Name: ______________________ 
 Multi- Tenant

City of Appleton 
   100 North Appleton Street, Appleton WI 54911 

     Phone: (920) 832-6411  Fax: (920) 832-6464 

SIGN PERMIT 

Permit No.:     ___________ 

Key No.:    ___________ 

Receipt No.:    ___________ 

Date:  ___________ 

 Permit Fee:  Penalty FeeA separate permit is required for each proposed sign. 

Estimated Cost: _________ 333 W. College Ave.
Hilton Paper Valley Hotel

96 48

ACM Panels

(2)

96

96 48

32

32 370sqft

370sqft48 64sqft ish

64sqft ish

N/A

Fastsigns of Appleton 135 S. Casaloma Dr. 920.954.9778 ariele.mcginn@fastsigns.com

Ariele McGinn 920.954.9778
135 S. Casaloma Dr. 

$2,350

*Condition of approval: Reconsideration of the Street Occupancy and Sign Permits shall be made upon 
completion of the Parking Utility Wayfinding, Marketing and Strategic Planning study and may result in 
possible revocation of the Sign and Street Occupancy Permits and removal of the sign. 







Page 1 of 3 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 01/20/2025 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

 Finance Committee 

From: Mike Hardy, P.E., PTOE, Traffic Engineer 

Subject: Grant acceptance request for new traffic signal at the Richmond Street (STH 
47) / Ridgeview Drive intersection 

 

Grant Acceptance Request 
 
At the August 26, 2024, Municipal Services Committee (MSC) meeting, approval was given to 
apply for grant funds through the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) Signals 
and ITS Standalone Program (SISP). We received notice on December 17, 2024, that our 
application was approved. We are now requesting approval to accept the grant funds and 
proceed with the project. 
 
Our grant application is to install a new permanent traffic signal (and related improvements) at 
the intersection of State Trunk Highway (STH) 47 (Richmond Street) and Ridgeview Drive in 
2026. The total estimated project cost is $640,000, of which the local cost share would be 10% 
($64,000). Any real estate acquisition would be the City’s responsibility, separate from the SISP 
program ($25,000). 
 
The City will be the project lead and pay for all upfront costs of the estimated $640,000, with up 
to 90% ($576,000) being eligible for reimbursement. The net balance of cost to the City would 
be 10% ($64,000) plus any real estate acquisition. Reimbursements from WisDOT are eligible 
after July 1, 2026, with a reimbursement deadline of December 1, 2026. 
 
The City will enter into an agreement with the Town of Grand Chute to split evenly the net 
balance and any real estate acquisition costs through a separate agreement. 
 
There is $75,000 in the approved 2025 DPW budget for design and real estate. Construction-
related costs will be included in the 2026 DPW budget. Construction would be in summer 2026, 
concurrent with the WisDOT Interstate-41 & Richmond interchange reconstruction. 
 
 
Project Background 
 



Page 2 of 3 

Based on ongoing complaints, the Traffic Section reviewed the operations of the Richmond 
Street (STH 47) / Ridgeview Drive intersection. The complaints include the prevalence of 
crashes, long waits on Ridgeview Drive, difficult sight lines for northbound/southbound left turns, 
and challenges crossing Richmond Street for bicyclists and pedestrians. 

Our review determined the traffic volumes are approaching the warrant thresholds, and the 
crash threshold was met in 2021. The recent development in the Town to the east is a 
contributing factor. Once the remaining green space in that area is developed, we anticipate the 
volume threshold will be met. 

The scope of the proposed project will include a new permanent traffic signal, geometric 
improvements to sidewalks to achieve compliance with standards, and aligned left turn lanes for 
optimal visibility and safety. 

Perhaps more pressing, WisDOT will be implementing a temporary traffic signal (with overhead 
span wire) at this intersection in April 2025 to mitigate traffic rerouting for the I-41 & Ballard 
Road interchange closure. We feel the temporary traffic signal will establish a precedent and 
expectation by the public that traffic signal control should remain. We also feel this temporary 
signal will induce additional traffic on Ridgeview Drive, resulting in additional signal warrants 
being met. WisDOT has agreed to keep their temporary signal in operation through the summer 
of 2026 to allow for construction of this new, permanent signal. 

  



Page 3 of 3 

 

 



 

                              ID 3700-30-71 – NE Region 
 

 

 

Original 
STATE/MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL 

AGREEMENT FOR A SIGNALS & 
ITS STANDALONE PROGRAM 

PROJECT 
 
 

 
Date: December 17, 2024 
I.D.:  3700-30-71 
Road Name:  STH 47 & Ridgeview Rd 
Title: City of Appleton  
Limits:  STH 47 
 County: Outagamie 
Roadway Length:      0.1 mile 

 
 

The signatory city of Appleton, hereinafter called the Municipality, through its undersigned duly authorized officers 
or officials, hereby requests the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the State, to 
initiate and affect the highway or street improvement hereinafter described. 

The authority for the Municipality to enter into this agreement with the State is provided by Section 86.25(1), (2), 
and (3) of the Statutes. 

 
 

NEEDS AND ESTIMATE SUMMARY: 

Existing Facility - Describe and give reason for request:  No current traffic signal exist. 

Proposed Improvement - Nature of work:  Install a new signal with monotubes (signal per lane and FYA), TS2 
cabinet, Iteris NEXT detection system, Cobalt controller, and fiber communications at the following intersection: 
State Highway 47 (Richmond Street) and Ridgeview Drive. Geometric changes are necessary for sidewalks to 
achieve ADA and MUTCD compliance, along with increasing the NB/SB left turn lane storage necessary for 
permanent traffic signal control. Additional geometric changes involve tapering the Highway 47 median angle of 
the left turn lanes for optimal visibility and safety. 

Describe non-participating work included in the project and other work necessary to finish the project 
completely which will be undertaken independently by the municipality:  

 
Total Federal/State Municipal 

Phase Est. Cost Funds % Funds %

ID 3700-30-71
640,000$               576,000$           90% 64,000$             10%

Total Cost Distribution 640,000$               576,000$           90% 64,000$             10%

*Construction ID 3700-30-71 state funding is limitied to $576,000 (State fiscal year 2026)

 



 

                              ID 3700-30-71 – NE Region 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

This request shall constitute agreement between the Municipality and the State; is subject to the terms and 
conditions that follow (pages 2 – 4); is made by the undersigned under proper authority to make such request for 
the designated Municipality, upon signature by the State, and delivery to the Municipality. The initiation and 
accomplishment of the improvement will be subject to the applicable federal and state regulations. No term or 
provision of neither the State/Municipal Financial Agreement nor any of its attachments may be changed, waived 
or terminated orally but only by an instrument in writing executed by both parties to the State/Municipal Financial 
Agreement.  

Signed for and in behalf of the city of Appleton (please sign in blue ink) 
 
Name (print)      Title       
 
 
Signature          Date 
 
Signed for and in behalf of the State (please sign in blue ink) 
 
Name        Title                    
 
 
Signature                          Date 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

1. The Municipality shall pay to the State all costs incurred by the State in connection with the improvement which 
exceeds federal/state financing commitments or are ineligible for federal/state financing. Local participation 
shall be limited to the items and percentages set forth in the Summary of Costs table, which shows Municipal 
funding participation. In order to guarantee the Municipality’s foregoing agreements to pay the State, the 
Municipality, through its above duly authorized officers or officials, agrees and authorizes the State to set off 
and withhold the required reimbursement amount as determined by the State from General Transportation 
Aids or any moneys otherwise due and payable by the State to the Municipality. 

2. Funding of each project phase is subject to inclusion in an approved program and per the State’s Facility 
Development Manual (FDM) standards.  Federal aid and/or state transportation fund financing will be limited 
to participation in the costs of the following items as specified in the Summary of Costs: 

(a)  Design engineering and state review services. 

(b)  Real Estate necessitated for the improvement. 

(c)  Compensable utility adjustment and railroad force work necessitated for the project. 

(d)  The grading, base, pavement, curb and gutter, and structure costs to State standards, excluding the cost of 
parking areas. 

(e)  Storm sewer mains, culverts, laterals, manholes, inlets, catch basins, and connections for surface water 
drainage of the improvement; including replacement and/or adjustments of existing storm sewer manhole 
covers and inlet grates as needed. 

(f)  Construction engineering incidental to inspection and supervision of actual construction work, except for 
inspection, staking, and testing of sanitary sewer and water main. 

(g)  Signing and pavement marking necessitated for the safe and efficient flow of traffic, including detour routes. 

 
 



 

                              ID 3700-30-71 – NE Region 
 

Page 2 of 4 

(h)  Replacement of existing sidewalks necessitated by construction and construction of new sidewalk at the 
time of construction.  Sidewalk is considered to be new if it’s constructed in a location where it has not 
existed before.  

(i)  Replacement of existing driveways, in kind, necessitated by the project. 

(j)  New installations or alteration resulting from roadway construction of standard State street lighting and 
traffic signals or devices. Alteration may include salvaging and replacement of existing components. 

3.  Work necessary to complete the improvement to be financed entirely by the Municipality or other utility or 
facility owner includes the following items: 

(a)  New installations of or alteration of sanitary sewers and connections, water, gas, electric, telephone, 
telegraph, fire or police alarm facilities, parking meters, and similar utilities. 

(b)  New installation or alteration of signs not necessary for the safe and efficient flow of traffic. 

(c)  Coordinate, clean up, and fund any hazardous materials encountered during construction. All 
hazardous material cleanup work shall be performed in accordance to state and federal regulations.  

(d)  Damages to abutting property due to change in street or sidewalk widths, grades, or drainage.  

(e)  Conditioning, if required, and maintenance of detour routes.  

(f)  Repair of damages to roads or streets caused by reason of their use in hauling materials incidental to 
the improvement.  

(g)  Maintain all portions of the project that lie within its jurisdiction for such maintenance through 
statutory requirements, in a manner satisfactory to the state and shall make ample provision for such 
maintenance each year. 

(h)  Use the WisDOT Utility Accommodation Policy unless the Municipality adopts a policy which has 
equal or more restrictive controls. 

4.  State Disbursements: 
 
(a) Payment by the State to the Municipality shall be made on a regular basis upon presentation of vouchers 

for expenditures incurred during prior periods of the project duration subject to the allowable maximum 
payment. Exceptions to this schedule will be made as appropriate. In general, State reimbursements will 
be made after sufficient proof of payment is sent to the State. 
 

(b) A final adjustment of state payments will be made upon completion of the State’s audit of the project. If 
the State’s audit establishes that the State paid more than its share of the eligible project costs, the 
Municipality shall refund to the State upon demand a sum equal to the overpayment. 

5.  If the Municipality should withdraw the project, it shall reimburse the State for any costs incurred by the State 
in behalf of the project. 

6.  The Municipality shall assume general responsibility for all public information and public relations for the 
project and to make a fitting announcement to the press and such outlets as would generally alert the affected 
property owners and the community of the nature, extent, and timing of the project and arrangements for 
handling traffic within and around the projects.  

7. Basis for local participation:  

(a)  Construction:  Cost for construction are 90% Federal/State and 10% Municipal up to a maximum of 
$640,000.  Any overages shall be funded by the Municipality. 

 



 

                              ID 3700-30-71 – NE Region 
 

Comments and Clarification:  This agreement is an active agreement that may need to be amended as the project 
is designed.  It is understood that these amendments may be needed as some issues have not been fully evaluated 
or resolved.  The purpose of this agreement is to specify the local and state involvement in funding the project.  
A signed agreement is required before the State will prepare or participate in the preparation of detailed designs, 
acquire right-of-way, or participate in construction of a project that merits local involvement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 4 



Page 1 of 2 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 1/20/25 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Eric Lom, P.E., City Traffic Engineer 

Subject: Parking changes on Emmers Dr and Schaefer St by East High School 
 (follow-up to a 6-month evaluation) 

 

 
At the request of the AASD, the City’s Traffic Section recently assessed the possibility of making 
two minor changes on Emmers Street and Schaefer Street, adjacent to East High School, as a 
means of improving traffic safety and operations. Based on our evaluation, we initiated an 
evaluation period in March of 2024. 

The evaluation generally included adding a small No Parking zone near a driveway (to ensure 
buses could safety enter) and adding a small No Stopping zone at the Schaefer/Bluebird 
intersection (to facilitate safe bus loading).  See Figure 1 below. 

This arrangement has had the desired effect, and we have not received any feedback from the 
community. Based on this, we recommend the changes be made permanent.  To accomplish 
this, the following ordinance changes are necessary: 

1. Create:  “Stopping/standing/parking be prohibited on the east side of Schaefer Street 
from Bluebird Lane to a point 50 feet north of Bluebird Lane.” 

2. Create:  “Parking be prohibited on the south side of Emmers Drive a point 105 feet east 
of Schaefer Street to a point 122 feet north of Bluebird Lane.” 

 

 

  



Page 2 of 2 

Figure 1 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 1/20/25 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Eric Lom, P.E., City Traffic Engineer 

Subject: Parking changes on Lightning Dr by Fire Station 6 
 (follow-up to a 6-month evaluation) 

 

 
At the request of the AFD, the City’s Traffic Section recently assessed the possibility of adding 
adding additional parking restrictions on Lightning Dr, adjacent to Fire Station 6. On-street 
parking demand in the area greatly increased after the opening of the nearby park, which raised 
concerns about Fire Department vehicles being able to safety pass through the area. Based on 
our evaluation, we initiated an evaluation period in July of 2024. 

Parking restriction changes generally included adding No Stopping zones near Fire Station 6’s 
driveway. See Figure 1 below. 

This arrangement has had the desired effect, and we have not received any feedback from the 
community. Based on this, we recommend the changes be made permanent.  To accomplish 
this, the following ordinance changes are necessary: 

1. Create:  “Stopping/standing/parking be prohibited on the east side of Lightning Drive 
from a point 777 feet north of Ashbury Drive to a point 1004 feet north of Ashbury Drive.” 

2. Create:  “Parking be prohibited on the east side of Lightning Drive from Edgewood Drive 
(CTH JJ) to a point 1004 feet north of Ashbury.” 

3. Create:  “Stopping/standing/parking be prohibited on the west side of Lightning Drive 
from a point 722 feet north of Ashbury Drive to a point 1022 feet north of Ashbury Drive. 

  



Page 2 of 2 

Figure 1 

 

 







 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 

 

TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee  

  Common Council  

 

FROM: Lt. Ben Goodin 

 

DATE: 8/09/2024 

 

RE: Police Department’s Recommendation for Denial of Kelly Arndt’s Bartender 

Renewal License Application 

 
 

 

Committee Members:  

 

The police department is requesting that the Safety and Licensing Committee recommend to the 

Common Council to deny Kelly Arndt’s application for a bartender renewal license based upon 

her criminal and / or arrest record, her unpardoned felony conviction(s), and her status as a 

“habitual law offender.”   

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(2)(b) and (3)(a), it is not employment discrimination for a 

licensing agency to deny an applicant based on an arrest or conviction record where the 

circumstances of the conviction substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular 

licensed activity. 

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(a)1., no license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be 

issued to an individual with an arrest or conviction record where the circumstances of the 

record(s) substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(b), no license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be 

issued to a “habitual law offender” where the circumstances of the habitual law offenses 

substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

 

Also pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(c), if the licensing agency refuses to license an 

individual based upon arrest or conviction record, the applicant is allowed an opportunity to 

show “evidence of rehabilitation and fitness to engage in the licensed activity,” unless the 

conviction(s) are for “exempt offenses.”  Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(d) provides the following 

options that the applicant may produce to conclusively demonstrate their rehabilitation and 

fitness from a given conviction: 

A copy of the local, state, or federal release document; and either  

(1) a copy of the relevant department of corrections document showing completion of 

probation, extended supervision, or parole; or  



(2) other evidence that at least one year has elapsed since release from any local, state, or 

federal correctional institution without subsequent conviction of a crime along with 

evidence showing compliance with all terms and conditions of probation, extended 

supervision, or parole. 

Additionally, the licensing agency must consider any of the following evidence if presented by 

the individual: 

(1) Evidence of the nature and seriousness of any offense of which he or she was 

convicted. 

(2) Evidence of all circumstances relative to the offense, including mitigating 

circumstances or social conditions surrounding the commission of the offense. 

(3) The age of the individual at the time the offense was committed. 

(4) The length of time that has elapsed since the offense was committed. 

(5) Letters of reference by persons who have been in contact with the individual since the 

applicant’s release from any local, state, or federal correctional institution. 

(6) All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and present fitness presented. 

 

 

STATEMENT ON SUBSTANTIAL RELATIONSHIP 

 

As part of any denial of licensing, the police department must determine if crimes are 

substantially related to the sale of alcohol.  During the 2023-2024 fiscal licensing year, Ms. 

Arndt was arrested and formally charged with the following: 

 

2023CF000224 in Calumet County 

9/26/2023 

- Possess w/Intent-Cocaine (>15-40 grams), a Class D Felony 

 

2024CF000338 in Outagamie County 

4/15/2024 

- Bail Jumping, a Class H Felony 

- Possession of Cocaine, a criminal Misdemeanor offense 

 

While Ms. Arndt held an Operator/Bartender license during the 2023-2024 fiscal year, she was 

arrested for cocaine related offenses twice.  The first arrest involved a substantial amount of 

cocaine and pertaining to drug dealing activity.  Ms. Arndt was arrested for Possession of 

Cocaine a few months later and also violated the conditions of her bond by committing a new 

crime.  Additionally, the renewal Operator/Bartender license application clearly instructs the 

applicant to:  

 

“List any pending charges, citations, tickets, and all convictions since last license 

application in or out of state.  Failure to provide complete answers may result in a denial of 

your application.” 

 

Directly under that section, Ms. Arndt failed to disclose her two recent drug arrests.  Ms. Arndt 

has displayed poor decision-making skills during this last year while she held a City of Appleton 

Operator/Bartender license.  While working at a bar, Ms. Arndt will undoubtedly come into 



contact with individuals who are in a vulnerable, intoxicated state.  Some of these individuals 

may suffer from addiction, whether it’s to alcohol or drugs.  Ms. Arndt must show the ability to 

make sound decisions when it comes to knowing when to stop serving a patron.  Her being 

arrested twice in the last year for drug possession/drug dealing shows she does not possess the 

proper decision-making skills to responsibly serve alcohol to members of the public.  Also, bars 

and taverns have frequently been locations where drugs are bought/sold/exchanged based on my 

experience as a police officer.  Given Ms. Arndt’s recent troubles with possessing and selling 

cocaine, granting her an Operator/Bartender license would only increase the likelihood of her 

reoffending.   

 

Based upon the information provided, it is the Appleton Police Department’s opinion that Kelly 

Arndt’s Operator/Bartender’s renewal license application be denied. 

 

 

Very Respectfully:  

 

 

Lt. Ben Goodin 

Appleton Police Department     

 



CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appleton.org 

 

 
TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee, Common Council  
 
From:  ACA Zak Buruin 
 
Date:  September 23, 2024 
 
RE:  Operator Licensing Renewal Application of Kelly Arndt 
 

 
Kelly Arndt has applied for an Operator License and is appealing the initial denial of that 
application.  Below is a summary of the relevant Chapter 125 eligibility requirements and an 
analysis of their application. 
 

Summary 
 
Insufficient grounds currently exist to conclude that the applicant is statutorily ineligible for the 
license renewal being sought.  Renewal should therefore be granted at this time. 
 
As the applicant’s pending criminal matters conclude, it remains possible that the situation will 
change.  If or when sufficient evidence becomes available to demonstrate that the applicant is 
no longer eligible for the license she currently seeks or then holds, revocation proceedings 
would be available and appropriate.   
  

§125.04(5) Licensing Requirements 
 
According to §125.04(5)(a)1, in order to be granted a license or permit under Wisconsin Statutes 
Chapter 125, the applicant may not have an arrest or conviction record.  This prohibition is 
subject to the requirements of various statutes prohibiting certain types of employment 
discrimination, which will be discussed in relevant part below.  These statutes are §111.321, 
§111.322, §111.335 and §125.12 (1) (b). 
 
§125.04(5)(b) states that “No license or permit related to alcohol beverages may, subject to 
§111.321, 111.322 and 111.335, be issued under this chapter to any person who has habitually 
been a law offender or has been convicted of a felony unless the person has been duly pardoned.”   
 
In summary, §125.04(5) prohibits the issuance of alcohol related licenses under chapter 125 to 
anybody with an arrest or conviction record, anybody with an unpardoned felony conviction, or 

http://www.appleton.org/


anybody “who has habitually been a law offender,” regardless of whether any arrests or 
convictions exist (see State ex rel. Smith v. City of Oak Creek, 139 Wis. 2d 788, 407 N.W.2d 901 
(1987)), unless failing to grant that license would constitute prohibited discrimination. 
 

§125.04(3)(j) – False Application Information 
 
It is a violation of the law to provide false information on an application for any type of alcohol 
beverage license.  §125.04(3)(j) provides that the penalty for any person who knowingly provides 
materially false information on an application for a license or permit under Chapter 125 may be 
required to forfeit not more than $1,000.   
 
A review of the general licensing requirements as well as the bases for revocations, suspensions, 
and refusals to issue or renew licenses reveals what may be an unexpected fact.  The provision 
of false, misleading, or incomplete information on an alcohol license application does not, in and 
of itself, provide an independent justification to deny, revoke, or suspend an alcohol beverage 
license under Chapter 125.   
 
Whether this is intentional or an oversight by the legislature is not known.  It is undoubtedly a 
proper consideration in a retail licensing application decision in situations where the licensing 
authority has more discretion.  However, operator licenses are required by statute to be granted 
if the applicant is eligible for the license applied for.  Absent an undiscovered statutory exclusion 
that might apply to someone who knowingly provides false information on their operator license 
application, doing so does not make someone statutorily ineligible for an operator license by 
itself. 
 

Prohibited Discrimination 
 

§111.321 – Prohibited Bases of Discrimination 
 
Arrest or conviction (among other bases not relevant to consideration here) are not permitted to 
be used as a basis for employment discrimination by a licensing agency. 
 

§111.335 – Arrest or Conviction Record; Exceptions and Special Cases 
 
§111.335(3)(a)1 states that it is not employment discrimination because of a conviction record 
to refuse to license an individual where that person has been convicted of “any felony, 
misdemeanor, or other offense the circumstances of which substantially relate to the 
circumstances of the particular job or licensed activity.”  In evaluating the existence of a 
substantial relationship, it is the circumstances that provide the opportunity for criminal 
behavior, the reaction to responsibility, or the character traits of the applicant that are the proper 
considerations.  It is not relevant whether the applicant has the ability to perform the work to an 
employer’s standards.  (See Milwaukee Cnty. v. Lab. & Indus. Rev. Comm'n, 139 Wis. 2d 805, 407 
N.W.2d 908 (1987)). 
 



Regarding pending charges, it is considered employment discrimination for a licensing agency to 
refuse to license an individual or suspend an individual from licensing “solely because the 
individual is subject to a pending criminal charge.”  The exception to this general rule is when the 
circumstances of the charge substantially relate to the circumstances of the licensed activity in 
question, and the offense is either an exempt offense or a violent crime against a child.  (See 
§111.335(2)(b) and (4)(a)).  However, even though the fact of a pending charge may not be the 
sole basis for denial, this does not appear to prohibit the underlying conduct from being 
considered, to the extent it can be proved with sufficient evidence.  
 
Each offense must be evaluated under the above criteria for determination of whether or not it 
is substantially related to the activity for which a license is sought.  Any arrest (subject to the 
above), conviction, or other offense which is substantially related to the licensed activity is to be 
considered in the licensing decision. 
 

Applicability to Kelly Arndt 
 
Ms. Arndt currently has criminal court matters pending in Calumet County and in Outagamie 
County.  As of this writing, both matters are pending.  Neither matter alleges an offense that 
would be considered exempt.  Therefore, the fact that either of these matters are pending is 
not something which can be properly considered as a sole basis for denial.   
 
The facts leading to an arrest remain a proper consideration when determining if an applicant is 
someone “who has habitually been a law offender.”  To be considered a “habitual law 
offender,” one need not be convicted of or even arrested for a crime.  Findings of guilt by a 
court are the typical way in which this is demonstrated, but they are not the only way in which 
law violations can be shown.  The full scope of the evidence in the pending criminal matters is 
not generally available at this point in Ms. Arndt’s proceedings.  Whether this impacts the 
ability to determine someone’s status as a “habitual law offender” must be determined on a 
case-by-case basis.   
 
In at least one of Ms. Arndt’s pending matters, a recent change in the procedural posture of the 
case indicates that there is at least the possibility of additional relevant factual developments 
before it is concluded.  The posture of the cases at the time of Lt. Goodin’s memorandum 
recommending the denial of the application was premised upon the (then) well-founded belief 
that the applicant was statutorily ineligible in fact, and that this fact could be sufficiently 
demonstrated to the Committee and Council.  The change in the posture of the criminal 
matters is something that occurred after the original memorandum submitted by Lt. Goodin.  It 
is not something he could have predicted based on the status of the cases at that time.  
Predictable or not, the change does appear to now preclude a fair and full consideration of the 
facts at this time.   
 
There is sufficient evidence by which it might be shown that the applicant violated the law by 
providing materially false information on her renewal application.  This does not, by itself, allow 
for the conclusion that the applicant is a “habitual law offender,” or render her statutorily 



ineligible for the license applied for.  It remains a consideration with respect to future license 
renewals, new applications, and other eligibility determinations under Chapter 125.  
 
Based on the above, it is premature to conclude whether or not Ms. Arndt is a “habitual law 
offender” and therefore ineligible for the license applied for.  In the absence of a determination 
that she is a “habitual law offender,” Ms. Arndt remains eligible for licensure, at least with 
respect to that specific qualification.   
 

Conclusion 
 
The defendant’s application should be granted, as it cannot be shown that she is ineligible at 
this time.   
 
The outcome of Ms. Arndt’s pending criminal matters remains to be seen both legally and 
factually.  Both could potentially have impacts upon whether Ms. Arndt remains statutorily 
eligible for an operator’s license.  The situation can and will be monitored.  Changes to eligibility 
would be addressed in accordance with Wisconsin Statutes §125.12, which governs 
revocations, suspensions, and refusals to issue or renew alcohol beverage licenses under 
Chapter 125. 



CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appleton.org 

 

 
TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee, Common Council  
 
From:  ACA Zak Buruin 
 
Date:  December 13, 2024 
 
RE:  UPDATE – Operator License Renewal Application of Kelly Arndt 
 

 
Kelly Arndt has applied for an Operator License and is appealing the denial of that application.  
Below is a summary of the relevant Chapter 125 eligibility requirements and an analysis of their 
application in this case, accounting for updated information brought up during the meeting of 
the Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting on December 11, 2024.  
 
This memorandum does not include sections or analysis which remains unchanged from the 
original submission. This memorandum is a supplement and should be read in conjunction with 
the memorandum previously submitted.   
 

Summary 
 
Ms. Arndt’s recent conviction leaves her ineligible for the license sought.  This ineligibility is 
subject to her ability to provide competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation.  It will be up to 
the Committee and Council to weigh that evidence and utilize sound discretion to determine 
whether any such evidence is competent to show sufficient rehabilitation.  If so, the license must 
be granted.  If not, it may not be granted.   
 
It remains premature to determine what impact Calumet County case 23CF224 will have upon 
Ms. Arndt’s future eligibility for licensure.   
  

Consideration of Rehabilitation 
 
§111.335(4)(c)1 requires that if a license is denied based upon §111.335(3)(a)1 (as discussed in 
the preceding section), the licensing agency typically has two further obligations.  It must state 
the reasons for denial in writing, including a statement of how the circumstances of the offense(s) 
relate to the licensed activity.  It must also allow the person to show evidence of rehabilitation.  
According to §111.335(4)(c)1.b, if the individual “shows competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation and fitness to perform the licensed activity under par. (d), the licensing agency may 

http://www.appleton.org/


not refuse to license the individual or bar or terminate the individual from licensing based on that 
conviction.” (Emphasis added). 
 
The statute specifically notes documentation that can demonstrate rehabilitation “on that 
conviction.”  As such, rehabilitation is to be considered with respect to each offense individually, 
rather than the applicant in totality.  Where denial is based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, and competent 
evidence of sufficient rehabilitation shown, that offense may not be considered as part of a denial 
decision. 
 

Competent Evidence of Sufficient Rehabilitation 
 
For denials based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation may be 
shown.  As indicated above in §111.335(4)(c)1.b, where such evidence is shown, the related 
conviction may not be the basis for a denial of a license. 
 
§111.335(4)(d)1 provides two forms of evidence which are statutorily required to be considered 
“competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation,” and therefore must be accepted by the 
licensing agency as such.  §111.335(4)(d)1.a. allows one to provide certified documentation of 
honorable discharge from the US armed forces following the otherwise disqualifying conviction.  
This documentation is no longer sufficient if there is a criminal conviction following the discharge 
date.2   
 
§111.335(4)(d)1.b, allows the applicant to provide documentation of their release from custody 
and either completion of probation or release from custody and compliance with all terms and 
conditions of release, be it extended supervision, probation, or parole.3   
 
Where neither of the above exists, §111.335(4)(d)2 provides additional documentary evidence 
that may be provided that the licensing agency is bound to consider, but that it is not required to 
accept conclusively as sufficient evidence of rehabilitation.  Evidence which the agency is 
required to consider include:  

a. evidence of the seriousness of any offense of which he / she was convicted. 
b. evidence of all circumstances relative to the offense including mitigating circumstances 

or social conditions surrounding the offense. 
c. The age of the individual at the time the offense was committed. 
d. The length of time that has elapsed since the offense was committed. 

 
1 Denials under other provisions may be subject to other requirements. 
2 From a practical standpoint, honorable discharge from the armed forces is not related to any particular offense.  
This section, in conjunction with §111.335(4)(c)1.b. could be interpreted as effectively removing any criminal 
offenses prior to honorable discharge from licensing consideration.  This would be more akin to evaluating the 
rehabilitation of the person rather than specific offenses, which is not what the other related statutes call for.  This 
arguable inconsistency what my prior, more rigid analysis was based upon.     
3 Periods of supervision are attributable to specific offenses, allowing for consideration of individual offenses as 
§111.335(4)(c)1.b contemplates. 



e. Letters of reference by persons who have been in contact with the individual since the 
applicant’s release from any local, state, or federal correctional institution. 

f. All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and fitness presented. 
 
Based upon the above, where a denial of a licensed is based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, and there is 
no evidence presented that is statutorily defined as “competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation” for a particular offense, it is up to the licensing agency to determine whether the 
other documentary evidence available constitutes “competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation and fitness to perform the licensed activity.”   
 
 

Applicability to Kelly Arndt 
 
Since my original memorandum on this subject was submitted, Ms. Arndt has been convicted of 
Possession of Cocaine, a misdemeanor offense, in Outagamie County case 24CF338 on November 
12, 2024.  Additionally, one count of Felony Bail Jumping was dismissed but read into the record 
for consideration at sentencing.  Sentence was withheld and Ms. Arndt was placed on probation 
for a period of 12 months.   
 
If it is determined that this offense is substantially related to the activity to be licensed, Ms. Arndt 
is ineligible for a license under Chapter 125 unless she is able to provide competent evidence of 
rehabilitation.  There is a basis to conclude that the offense is substantially related to the licensed 
activity in that it involves the irresponsible and unlawful usage and possession of intoxicating 
substances, particuarly while under enhanced legal obligations.  The enhanced legal obligation 
comes from her status on a criminal bond versus being a holder of an Operator’s license, but it is 
an additional aspect of substantial relation between the offense and the licensed activity.      
 
In light of the time since this conviction, it is not possible for her to demonstrate successful 
completion of probation or a year of elapsed time since release with compliance with all 
conditions of supervision.  There is no indication that she might show honorable discharge from 
the US military since the conviction.  She appears unable to satisfy either of the showings that 
the Committee and Council would be required to accept as competent evidence of rehabilitation.   
 
Absent either of the above showings, Ms. Arndt would only be eligible for licensure if she were 
to provide sufficient evidence to convince the Committee and Council, in their discretion, that 
she has been sufficiently rehabilitated to be licensed.  This is an evaluation that is to be made by 
the Committee and Council, utilizing their best evaluation of the relevant information available, 
including but not limited to any of the information under §111.335(4)(d)2 and noted above.  
 
Ms. Arndt’s additional criminal matter in Calumet County remains pending, with a Jury Trial 
scheduled for April of 2025.  The evaluation of this matter has not changed since my prior 
memorandum.  When that matter is adjudicated, it can be determined what additional impact it 
might have on Ms. Arndt’s eligibility for licensure.   
 



 
Conclusion 

 
Ms. Arndt’s recent conviction leaves her ineligible for the license sought.  This ineligibility is 
subject to her ability to provide competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation.  It will be up to 
the Committee and Council to weigh that evidence and utilize sound discretion to determine 
whether any such evidence is competent to show sufficient rehabilitation.  If so, the license must 
be granted.  If not, it may not be granted.   
 
It remains premature to determine what impact Calumet County case 23CF224 will have upon 
Ms. Arndt’s future eligibility for licensure.   





















































 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 

 

TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee  

  Common Council  

 

FROM: Lt. Ben Goodin 

 

DATE: 10/10/2024 

 

RE: Police Department’s Recommendation for Denial of Katherine Neubert’s Bartender 

License Application 

 
 

 

Committee Members:  

 

The police department is requesting that the Safety and Licensing Committee recommend to the 

Common Council to deny Katherine Neubert’s application for a bartender license.   

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(2)(b) and (3)(a), it is not employment discrimination for a 

licensing agency to deny an applicant based on an arrest or conviction record where the 

circumstances of the conviction substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular 

licensed activity. 

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(a)1., no license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be 

issued to an individual with an arrest or conviction record where the circumstances of the 

record(s) substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(b), no license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be 

issued to a “habitual law offender” where the circumstances of the habitual law offenses 

substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

 

Also pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(c), if the licensing agency refuses to license an 

individual based upon arrest or conviction record, the applicant is allowed an opportunity to 

show “evidence of rehabilitation and fitness to engage in the licensed activity,” unless the 

conviction(s) are for “exempt offenses.”  Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(d) provides the following 

options that the applicant may produce to conclusively demonstrate their rehabilitation and 

fitness from a given conviction: 

A copy of the local, state, or federal release document; and either  

(1) a copy of the relevant department of corrections document showing completion of 

probation, extended supervision, or parole; or  

(2) other evidence that at least one year has elapsed since release from any local, state, or 

federal correctional institution without subsequent conviction of a crime along with 



evidence showing compliance with all terms and conditions of probation, extended 

supervision, or parole. 

Additionally, the licensing agency must consider any of the following evidence if presented by 

the individual, though none are required to be accepted as conclusive proof of rehabilitation: 

(1) Evidence of the nature and seriousness of any offense of which he or she was 

convicted. 

(2) Evidence of all circumstances relative to the offense, including mitigating 

circumstances or social conditions surrounding the commission of the offense. 

(3) The age of the individual at the time the offense was committed. 

(4) The length of time that has elapsed since the offense was committed. 

(5) Letters of reference by persons who have been in contact with the individual since the 

applicant’s release from any local, state, or federal correctional institution. 

(6) All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and present fitness presented. 

 

 

STATEMENT ON SUBSTANTIAL RELATIONSHIP 

 

As part of any denial of licensing, the police department must determine if crimes are 

substantially related to the sale of alcohol.  Ms. Neubert is a habitual law offender based on the 

following convictions: 

 

Operating While Intoxicated (3rd) in Outagamie County case # 2022CT000244. 

 

Operating While Intoxicated (2nd) in Outagamie County case # 2013CT000150. 

 

Operating While Intoxicated (1st) in Outagamie County case # 2011TR002386. 

 

These three Operating While Intoxicated convictions are substantially related to the sale of 

alcohol for several reasons.  Ms. Neubert has shown a pattern of poor decision-making by getting 

arrested for Operating While Intoxicated in 2011, 2012 (convicted in 2013) and again in 2021 

(convicted in 2022). 

 

Drunk driving is a serious offense and a major problem not only in Wisconsin but across the 

entire country.  Ms. Neubert has not shown the ability to make sound decisions by understanding 

when she has had too much to drink and is unsafe to operate a motor vehicle.  A person serving 

alcohol to members of the public must be aware of when a patron has had enough to drink and 

should not be served any longer.  If Ms. Neubert cannot understand when she is too drunk to 

drive, it’s unreasonable to believe she would recognize when a patron she is serving has also 

consumed too much alcohol. 

 

Having nine years of no OWI arrests from 2012-2021 is commendable.  However, it is the police 

department’s belief that Ms. Neubert getting arrested a third time for OWI as recently as 2021 

clearly indicates she does not understand the seriousness of drunk driving.  Ms. Neubert has not 

shown she has learned her lesson from the first two arrests, and her pattern of drunk driving 

behavior is concerning. 

 



As a person who wants to be responsible to serve alcohol, Ms. Neubert has not shown the ability 

to make good decisions related to her own sobriety.  The service of alcohol includes coming into 

contact with individuals in a very vulnerable state and the Appleton Police Department feels that 

through Ms. Neubert’s prior OWI convictions that she has not demonstrated the necessary 

maturity and decision-making capacity to be allowed a bartender’s license in the City of 

Appleton.   

 

Ms. Neubert’s repeated OWI convictions qualify her as a habitual law offender and the Appleton 

Police Department recommends her bartender application be denied. 

 

Very Respectfully:  

 

 

Lt. Ben Goodin 

Appleton Police Department     

 



CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appleton.org 

 

 
TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee, Common Council  
 
From:  ACA Zak Buruin 
 
Date:  January 3, 2025 
 
RE:  Operator’s License Application of Katherine Neubert 
 

 
Katherine Neubert has applied for an Operator’s (Bartender) License  and is appealing the denial 
of that application.  Below is a summary of the relevant Chapter 125 eligibility requirements and 
an analysis of their application in this case. 
 

Summary 
 
The Appleton Police Department’s recommendation that the applicant’s application be denied 
based upon Lt. Goodin’s conclusion that applicant is a habitual law offender is well-grounded in 
the relevant and facts and law currently available.  She is ineligible for licensure unless she 
provides “competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation.”   
  

§125.04(5) Licensing Requirements 
 
According to §125.04(5)(a)1, in order to be granted a license or permit under Wisconsin Statutes 
Chapter 125, the applicant may not have an arrest or conviction record.  This prohibition is 
subject to the requirements of various statutes prohibiting certain types of employment 
discrimination, which will be discussed below.  These statutes are §111.321, §111.322, §111.335 
and §125.12 (1) (b). 
 
§125.04(5)(b) states that “No license or permit related to alcohol beverages may, subject to 
§111.321, 111.322 and 111.335, be issued under this chapter to any person who has habitually 
been a law offender or has been convicted of a felony unless the person has been duly pardoned.”   
 
In summary, §125.04(5) prohibits the issuance of alcohol related licenses under chapter 125 to 
anybody with an arrest or conviction record, anybody with an unpardoned felony conviction, or 
anybody “who has habitually been a law offender,” regardless of whether any arrests or 
convictions exist (see State ex rel. Smith v. City of Oak Creek, 139 Wis. 2d 788, 407 N.W.2d 901 
(1987)), unless failing to grant that license would constitute prohibited discrimination. 

http://www.appleton.org/


 
Prohibited Discrimination 

 
§111.321 – Prohibited Bases of Discrimination 

 
Arrest or conviction (among other bases not relevant to consideration here) are not permitted to 
be used as a basis for employment discrimination by a licensing agency. 
 

§111.322 – Discriminatory Actions Prohibited 
 
§111.322(1) specifies that refusal to license any individual on any of the bases listed in §111.321, 
which includes arrest and conviction history.  This is subject to exceptions set forth in §111.33 to 
§111.365, neither of which apply to the instant circumstances.   
 

§111.335 – Arrest or Conviction Record; Exceptions and Special Cases 
 
§111.335(3)(a)1 states that it is not employment discrimination because of a conviction record 
to refuse to license an individual where that person has been convicted of “any felony, 
misdemeanor, or other offense the circumstances of which substantially related to the 
circumstances of the particular job or licensed activity.”  In evaluating the existence of a 
substantial relationship, it is the circumstances that provide the opportunity for criminal 
behavior, the reaction to responsibility, or the character traits of the applicant that are the proper 
considerations.  It is not relevant whether the applicant has the ability to perform the work to an 
employer’s standards.  (See Milwaukee Cnty. v. Lab. & Indus. Rev. Comm'n, 139 Wis. 2d 805, 407 
N.W.2d 908 (1987)). 
 
Each offense must be evaluated under the above criteria for determination of whether or not it 
is substantially related to the activity for which a license is sought.  Any arrest, conviction, or 
other offense which is substantially related to the licensed activity is to be considered in the 
licensing decision. 
 

Consideration of Rehabilitation 
 
§111.335(4)(c)1 requires that if a license is denied based upon §111.335(3)(a)1 (as discussed in 
the preceding section), the licensing agency typically has two further obligations.  It must state 
the reasons for denial in writing, including a statement of how the circumstances of the offense(s) 
relate to the licensed activity.  It must also allow the person to show evidence of rehabilitation.  
According to §111.335(4)(c)1.b, if the individual “shows competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation and fitness to perform the licensed activity under par. (d), the licensing agency may 
not refuse to license the individual or bar or terminate the individual from licensing based on that 
conviction.” (Emphasis added). 
 
The statute specifically notes documentation that can demonstrate rehabilitation “on that 
conviction.”  As such, rehabilitation is to be considered with respect to each offense individually, 



rather than the applicant in totality.  Where denial is based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, and competent 
evidence of sufficient rehabilitation shown, that offense may not be considered as part of a denial 
decision. 
 

Competent Evidence of Sufficient Rehabilitation 
 
For denials based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation may be 
shown.  As indicated above in §111.335(4)(c)1.b, where such evidence is shown, the related 
conviction may not be the basis for a denial of a license. 
 
§111.335(4)(d)1 provides two forms of evidence which are statutorily required to be considered 
“competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation,” and therefore must be accepted by the 
licensing agency as such.  §111.335(4)(d)1.a. allows one to provide certified documentation of 
honorable discharge from the US armed forces following the otherwise disqualifying conviction.  
This documentation is no longer sufficient if there is a criminal conviction following the discharge 
date.2   
 
§111.335(4)(d)1.b, allows the applicant to provide documentation of their release from custody 
and either completion of probation or release from custody and compliance with all terms and 
conditions of release, be it extended supervision, probation, or parole.3   
 
Where neither of the above exists, §111.335(4)(d)2 provides additional documentary evidence 
that may be provided that the licensing agency is bound to consider, but that it is not required to 
accept conclusively as sufficient evidence of rehabilitation.  Evidence which the agency is 
required to consider include:  

a. evidence of the seriousness of any offense of which he / she was convicted. 
b. evidence of all circumstances relative to the offense including mitigating circumstances 

or social conditions surrounding the offense. 
c. The age of the individual at the time the offense was committed. 
d. The length of time that has elapsed since the offense was committed. 
e. Letters of reference by persons who have been in contact with the individual since the 

applicant’s release from any local, state, or federal correctional institution. 
f. All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and fitness presented. 

 
Based upon the above, where a denial of a licensed is based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, and there is 
no evidence presented that is statutorily defined as “competent evidence of sufficient 

 
1 Denials under other provisions may be subject to other requirements. 
2 From a practical standpoint, honorable discharge from the armed forces is not related to any particular offense.  
This section, in conjunction with §111.335(4)(c)1.b. could be interpreted as effectively removing any criminal 
offenses prior to honorable discharge from licensing consideration.  This would be more akin to evaluating the 
rehabilitation of the person rather than specific offenses, which is not what the other related statutes call for.  This 
arguable inconsistency what my prior, more rigid analysis was based upon.     
3 Periods of supervision are attributable to specific offenses, allowing for consideration of individual offenses as 
§111.335(4)(c)1.b contemplates. 



rehabilitation” for a particular offense, it is up to the licensing agency to determine whether the 
other documentary evidence available constitutes “competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation and fitness to perform the licensed activity.”   
 

Applicability to Katherine Neubert 
 
Operating While Intoxicated offenses are unquestionably substantially related to the activity for 
which Ms. Neubert seeks a license.  Ms. Neubert’s history of repeated Operating While 
Intoxicated offenses makes her a habitual law offender.  The criminal conviction for her most 
recent offense, a third offense, was on July 15, 2022.  Sentence was withheld and she was placed 
on probation.  Probation records could be particuarly determinative evidence in this case, but 
they are not the only source of information which either must of should be considered.  Should 
she provide “competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation” as described above, the requested 
license must be granted.  It is up to her to provide any such evidence.  
 
Should she fail to provide “competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation” as described above, 
Ms. Neubert would remain statutorily ineligible for the requested license, and it may not be 
granted.  
 

Conclusion 
 
The Appleton Police Department’s recommendation that the applicant’s application be denied 
based upon Lt. Goodin’s conclusion that applicant is a habitual law offender is well-grounded in 
the relevant and facts and law currently available.  She is ineligible for licensure unless she 
provides “competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation.”   
 
 







lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil







lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



RESOLUTION  

Emergency Sodium Hypochlorite Tank Replacement at Appleton Water 

Treatment Facility 

 

WHEREAS, one of three 11,000 gallon sodium hypochlorite tanks at the Appleton Water 

Treatment Facility has failed; and 

WHEREAS, the structural damage caused by chemical deterioration of the fiberglass tank 

is so significant that interior or exterior in-situ repairs will not effectively address all potential 

failure points; and 

WHEREAS, the structural damage caused by chemical exposure and deterioration of the 

fiberglass tank is so significant that in-situ repairs will not effectively address all other potential 

failure points; and 

WHEREAS, all existing tanks are of the same vintage and the failure of another 

hypochlorite bulk storage tank would jeopardize disinfection treatment processes presenting an 

immediate and significant danger to the public health and safety without emergency 

replacement; and 

WHEREAS, Wisconsin State Statute § 62.15(1b) allows for the Finance Committee, as a 

board of public works, to determine that an emergency has been created by the damage or 

threatened damage to a public facility in which the public health or welfare is endangered; and 

WHEREAS, City staff have identified a qualified contractor that can immediately begin 

addressing the emergency replacement of the bulk storage tanks through emergency 

procurement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Finance Committee determines that the 

danger to the public health and welfare from the damage to all three 11,000 gallon sodium 

hypochlorite bulk storage tanks at the Appleton Wastewater Treatment Facility creates an 

emergency for repair and reconstruction to a public facility pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 62.15(1b). 

Adopted this 5th day of February 2025. 

CITY OF APPLETON | FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

By: _____________________________  Attest: ____________________________ 

 Alderperson Brad Firkus     Kami Lynch 

 Finance Committee Chair    City Clerk 







CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appletonwi.gov 
 
 

 
TO:  Members of the Finance Committee 
 
FROM:  Assistant City Attorney Darrin Glad 
 
DATE:  January 28, 2025 
 
RE: Emergency Sodium Hypochlorite Tank Replacement at Appleton Water 

Treatment Facility Resolution 
  Our File No. A25-0046 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
This memo accompanies the Emergency Sodium Hypochlorite Tank Replacement at Appleton 
Water Treatment Facility Resolution. Wis. Stat. § 62.15(1b) allows a public emergency 
exception to certain requirements for public works contracts, stating: 
 

The provisions of sub. (1) … are not mandatory for the repair and reconstruction of public 
facilities when damage or threatened damage thereto creates an emergency, as 
determined by resolution of the board of public works1 … , in which the public health or 
welfare of the city is endangered.  
 

If the Finance Committee determines through resolution that the damage to the bulk sodium 
hypochlorite tanks at the Appleton Water Treatment Facility create an emergency in which the 
public health or welfare of the City is endangered, the City can immediately proceed to contract 
to alleviate the deteriorated facilities. 
 
 
 
 

 
1 In 2013, the Charter Ordinances of the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton were changed to repeal the Board 
of Public Works and assign all their previous duties to the Finance Committee.  

http://www.appletonwi.gov/
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/62.15(1)




 

Department of Utilities  
Water Treatment Facility 

2281 Manitowoc Rd. 
Menasha, WI 54952 

p:920-997-4200 
f: 920-997-3240 

www.appleton.org/government/utilities 

 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:  January 15, 2025 

To:  Chairperson Brad Firkus and Members of the Finance Committee 

CC:  Chris Stempa, Director of Utilities 
John Pogrant, Water Operations Supervisor 

   Kelli Rindt, Enterprise Accounting Fund Manager 

From:  Ryan Rice, Deputy Director of Utilities 

Subject: Finance Committee Action: Award Sole Source Purchase of Appleton Water 
Treatment Facility Emergency Generator Control Equipment to Fabick Power 
Systems for a cost of $$653,837 with a contingency of $46,163 for a total not 
to exceed $700,000. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The Appleton Water Treatment Facility (AWTF) has two Caterpillar (CAT) diesel powered 

generators that are utilized for emergency backup power. Each generator is 2,500 horsepower 

and can generate up 1,850 kilowatts of electricity (each).  One generator can supply enough 

electricity to satisfy all the AWTF operational needs when a disruption of grid power occurs.  In 

May 2024, one of the generators developed an issue within the controls which caused it to fail and 

couldn’t operate. The local CAT dealer and servicer, Fabick Power Systems (Fabick CAT) 

completed a repair and successfully returned the generator to operation.  However, Fabick CAT 

stated that availability for replacement parts of this equipment vintage is minimal and that our risk 

exposure would be high if a major component were to fail. 

The city has been engaged in contract for capacity with WPPI Energy for nearly 20 years which 

provides a monthly payment to have our generators “standby ready” when called upon to provide 

power back to the grid. The type of circumstances that result in us being called upon are related to 

a loss of power caused by extreme weather-related events or electrical capacity constraints caused 

by extremely high customer demand. The payment to the city ranges from $7,400 to $8,700 each 

month.  It is critical to have the generators fully functional for treatment plant emergency operation 

but also to satisfy capacity contract obligations and preserve associated revenue that is generated 

from it each year.  

The 2025 AWTF budget approved by Common Council included $700,000 for replacement of 

AWTF generator control panels.   

QUOTATION  

Fabick CAT provided a quote of $653,837 for replacement of the generators control system which 

includes: 

http://www.appleton.org/government/utilities


Finance Committee Memorandum 
Sole Source AWTF Emergency Generator Control Equipment Purchase: Fabick CAT 
Page 2 of 2 
 

- System Generator Paralleling Switchgear Controls 

- Medium Voltage Switchgear Protective Relays 

- Generator Controls 

- Integration 

- Commissioning & Testing 

JUSTIFICATION 

Failure of the generators control system in the absence of grid power jeopardizes treatment and 

risks interruption of City water supply, along with the continuing WPPI payments.  

As the original equipment manufacturer (OEM) Fabick CAT, has provided maintenance related 

contract services on the CAT generators at the Water and Wastewater facilities. Fabick CAT’s 

familiarity with these units and their expertise with the equipment ensures the successful 

completion of the project and continued reliability of operation.  

The quote by Fabick CAT employs the current mechanism of the switchgear and replaces the 

programming and controls with new equipment.  

As part of our due diligence, Fabick CAT was asked to also provide an estimate for new 

generators, controls, and associated equipment of the same capacity as the current system. If a 

new installation was chosen, all new wiring, switchgear, and facility considerations would be 

needed. The estimate is between $2.7M and $3.2M not including installation by a 

mechanical/electrical contractor. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

I am recommending the approval of a sole source purchase of Appleton Water Treatment Facility 

Emergency Generator Control Equipment to Fabick Power Systems for a cost of $$653,837 with a 

contingency of $46,163 for a total not to exceed $700,000. 

If you have any questions regarding this project, please contact Ryan Rice at 920-832-5945. 

 

Encl: Finance Department Sole Source Request Form 



 

Department of Parks & Recreation 
1819 East Witzke Blvd. 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920-832-5905 
f: 920-993-3103 

www.appletonparkandrec.org 

 

 

 
TO:  Finance Committee 
 
FROM:  Dean Gazza 
 
DATE:  1-20-25 
 

R RE:   EECGB Grant Budget Amendment 
 

 

The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act of 2021 included grant funding allocations for 
the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant.  The City of Appleton was awarded 
$134,180.  The grant was approved by the City Council in 2024 and is to be used for seed 
funding to encourage sustainable actions, create strategies, renewable energy, etc. to 
government facilities. 
 
Request to approve the following budget amendment: 
 
CEA Capital Projects Fund 
  Federal Grants  + $134,180 
  Vehicles   + $134,180 
 
Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 

 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


 

 

 
Appleton Public Library 

3000 E. College Ave., Suite B 
Appleton, WI 54915  

p: 920.832.6173 
www.apl.org 

Memo 
To: Appleton Public Library Board of Trustees; City of Appleton Finance Committee 
From: Colleen Rortvedt, Library Director 
Date: January 8, 2025 
Subject:  Approval to accept Non-State Grant Award of $274,000 
 
The Wisconsin Department of Administration (State), through the State Building Commission and the 
Non-State Grant Award, has awarded a $274,000 grant to the Appleton Public Library (Library) project 
to support the transformative renovation of the library building and enhance its role as a community and 
cultural hub, providing modernized facilities to meet the evolving needs of the Appleton community 
(Project). Trustee approval is required to accept this grant. 
 
Key Terms of the Agreement: 

o The State will reimburse construction expenses up to $274,000. 
o The Library has secured non-state revenue sources covering at least half of the 

$40,400,000 total project cost. 
o Beyond the grant payment, the State assumes no responsibility for the facility. 
o The Library indemnifies the State against liabilities related to the Project. 
o The Library accepts a 20-year land use restriction ensuring the property serves the 

purposes of the Project. If the library building ceases to serve a public purpose, the State 
retains an ownership interest proportional to the grant amount. 

o The Library must adhere to non-discrimination and equal employment opportunities. 
o Payments are contingent upon the submission of requisition forms and proof of incurred 

expenses. 
 
 
Upon approval, the agreement will be signed, staff will complete the requirements of the grant, and 
request reimbursement of funds. 
 

http://www.apl.org/




 

Department of Utilities  
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

2006 E Newberry Street 
Appleton, WI  54915 

920-832-5945 tel. 
920-832-5949 fax 

www.appleton.org/government/utilities 

 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:  January 15, 2025 

To:  Chairperson Brad Firkus and Members of the Finance Committee 

CC:  Chris Stempa, Director of Utilities  
Kelli Rindt, Enterprise Accounting Fund Manager 

From:  Ryan Rice, Deputy Director of Utilities 

Subject: Finance Committee Action: Award Sole Source Contract to Groome Industrial 
Services for WWTP Hydroblasting service in the amount not to exceed 
$30,000. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The Appleton wastewater treatment plant (AWWTP) accepts lime softening residuals from the 

Appleton water treatment facility (AWTF) which are primarily calcium carbonate. The residuals are 

transported via forcemain between plants and enter the WWTP at the head of the liquid treatment 

train where it comingles with influent wastewater from the city sewerage collection system. The 

comingled waste stream flows through preliminary treatment and then enters the primary 

clarification process where heavier solids like lime residuals settle out and are pumped into the 

anaerobic primary digesters with the settled primary sludge.  

The residuals continue through the solids treatment process until the digested sludge is 

dewatered by belt filter press. The dewatered sludge is stored in the sludge storage building and 

the filtrate water from the belt filter press is captured and piped to the filtrate storage tank for flow 

equalization before entering the aeration process of the liquid treatment train (approximately 

1,200 feet of 12-inch diameter and 10-inch diameter pipe).  

The calcium carbonate in the digested sludge forms lime scale on the dewatering equipment and 

inside the filtrate piping/tank. The progressive formation of lime scale slowly restricts flow through 

filtrate piping which must be removed every one to two years to maintain effective treatment 

operations. The primary method of removal is by 10,000 PSI water jetting of the piping, also 

known as hydroblasting.  

The 2025 AWWTP budget approved by Common Council included $30,000 for contracted 

hydroblasting service. 

PROPOSAL: 

Groome Industrial Services provided a quote for hydroblasting services for 2025 with a daily (8 

hour) rate of $2,550.00.  

JUSTIFICATION: 

http://www.appleton.org/government/utilities


Finance Committee Memorandum 
Sole Source Contract to Groome Industrial Services for WWTP Hydroblasting Service 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Groome (formerly known as H2O Underpressure) has the equipment and experienced personnel 

necessary to perform this work and successfully performed hydroblasting in 2024 and was asked 

to provide a quote for hydroblasting in 2025. Groome has consistently been the least cost quote 

when hydroblasting service has been solicited and their rate quoted for 2025 hydroblasting 

service is unchanged from the rate quoted in 2023 and 2024. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

I am recommending the award of a sole source contract to Groome Industrial Services for 

hydroblasting service in the amount not to exceed $30,000. 

If you have any questions regarding this project, please contact Ryan Rice at 920-832-5945. 

 

Encl: Finance Department Sole Source Request Form 



TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

   Unit H-25 Lawe Street Bridge over Fox River Repairs

Be awarded to:

Name:  Norcon Corporation

Address:  5600 Municipal St.

Schofield, WI  54476

In the amount of :

With a 10 % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:

Committee Date:

Council Date:

**  OR  **

$20,394.60

$224,340.60

$330,000.00

$275,000.00

01/20/25

01/29/25

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N
Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$203,946.00

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

1/15/2025
https://cityofappleton.sharepoint.com/sites/PublicWorks-Teams/Shared Documents/DPW City Hall/Engineering/2ENGINEERS/Weyenberg C/Projects/2025/H-25 Lawe Street Bridge
Maintenance/AA-21 Contract Award Form.xls



H-25 Lawe Street bridge over Fox River repairs (#9448329)
Owner: Appleton WI, City of
Solicitor: Appleton WI, City of
12/30/2024 01:45 PM CST

Norcon Corporation LUNDA CONSTRUCTION Zenith Tech, INC. bridge
Section Title Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
H-25 BASE BID $203,946.00 $228,822.00 $298,245.00

1 202.011 Roadside Clearing sq. yd 40 $40.00 $1,600.00 $37.00 $1,480.00 $30.00 $1,200.00
2 203.026 Removing Structure over Waterway Minimal Debris (P-44-717)each 1 $2,865.00 $2,865.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
3 203.0335 Debris Containment over Waterway (P-44-717) each 1 $1,975.00 $1,975.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
4 502.01 Concrete Masonry Bridges cu. yd. 2 $1,550.00 $3,100.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,500.00 $3,000.00
5 502.0180.S Bridge Deck Crack Sealing lin. ft. 500 $6.00 $3,000.00 $3.00 $1,500.00 $4.50 $2,250.00
6 502.3215 Protective Surface Treatment Reseal sq. yd 2144 $4.50 $9,648.00 $3.00 $6,432.00 $12.50 $26,800.00
7 509.0301 Preparation Decks Type 1 sq. yd 150 $210.00 $31,500.00 $230.00 $34,500.00 $205.00 $30,750.00
8 509.0302 Preparation Decks Type 2 sq. yd 38 $230.00 $8,740.00 $325.00 $12,350.00 $240.00 $9,120.00
9 509.0310.S Sawing Pavement Deck Preparation Areas lin. ft. 600 $12.00 $7,200.00 $1.00 $600.00 $5.50 $3,300.00

10 509.06 Curb Repair lin. ft. 35 $86.00 $3,010.00 $165.00 $5,775.00 $125.00 $4,375.00
11 509.15 Concrete Surface Repair sq. ft. 60 $362.00 $21,720.00 $235.00 $14,100.00 $275.00 $16,500.00
12 509.2100.S Concrete Masonry Deck Repair cu. yd. 15 $1,250.00 $18,750.00 $300.00 $4,500.00 $1,500.00 $22,500.00
13 509.25 Concrete Masonry Overlay Decks cu. yd. 2 $1,250.00 $2,500.00 $300.00 $600.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00
14 509.9025.S Epoxy Injection Crack Repair lin. ft. 200 $138.00 $27,600.00 $102.00 $20,400.00 $80.00 $16,000.00
15 514.2625 Downspout 6-inch lin. ft. 24 $245.00 $5,880.00 $233.00 $5,592.00 $325.00 $7,800.00
16 619.1 Mobilization each 1 $27,848.00 $27,848.00 $87,985.00 $87,985.00 $85,000.00 $85,000.00
17 643.5 Traffic Control each 1 $6,200.00 $6,200.00 $8,480.00 $8,480.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00
18 SPV.0060.01 Cleaning and Painting Bearings each 10 $625.00 $6,250.00 $614.80 $6,148.00 $1,000.00 $10,000.00
19 SPV.0060.02 Embedded Galvanic Anodes each 60 $46.00 $2,760.00 $35.50 $2,130.00 $65.00 $3,900.00
20 SPV.0060.03 Watermain Hanger Relocation each 1 $1,450.00 $1,450.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
21 SPV.0165.01 Fiber Wrap Reinforcing Non-Structural sq. ft. 75 $138.00 $10,350.00 $90.00 $6,750.00 $150.00 $11,250.00

Base Bid Total: $203,946.00 $228,822.00 $298,245.00


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 1-15-25
	0002_1_APA Appt Memo 2-5-2025
	0002_2_Sustainability Climate Panel Appt 2-5-2025
	0003_1_Hilton Occupancy Permit Application
	0003_2_Hilton Skywalk Parking Signs Application
	150428 Hilton Parking 5.pdf
	150428 Hilton Parking 5-1
	150428 Hilton Parking 5-2


	0003_3_Hilton Occupancy Permit Application-Condition of Approval
	0003_4_Hilton Skywalk Parking Signs Application-Condition of Approval
	150428 Hilton Parking 5.pdf
	150428 Hilton Parking 5-1
	150428 Hilton Parking 5-2


	0004_1_SISP Grant Acceptance Request_RidgeviewRichmond 01-20-2025
	MSC and Finance Memo SISP Grant Acceptance Request_RidgeviewRichmond 01-20-2025
	Richmond-Ridgeview WisDOT Agreement

	0005_1_East HS Parking Changes on Emmers Schaefer (post eval)
	0006_1_Station 6 Parking Changes on Lightning Dr (post eval)
	0007_1_Kelly Arndt Application
	0007_2_Kelly Arndt Clerk Letter
	0007_3_Kelly Arndt PD Letter
	0007_4_Kelly Arndt Appeal Memo
	0007_5_UPDATE Operator License Renewal Application of Kelly Arndt
	0007_6_Kelly Arndt Additional Documentation
	0008_1_Katherine Neubert Application
	0008_2_Katherine Neubert Clerk's Letter
	0008_3_Katherine Neubert denial letter
	0008_4_Operator License Application of Katherine Neubert
	0008_5_Katherine Neubert Additional Documentation
	0009_1_A-Z Tobacco Inc.CTV.1.8.25.REDACTED
	0010_1_Halal Intl Market.CTV.1.9.25.REDACTED
	0011_1_Heid Music.Secondhand Article Renewal.1.10.25
	0012_1_La Bodega Lounge.Alcohol.Class B_Beer_Reserve Liquor.12.20.24.REDACTED
	0013_1_Top Dogs Vape Shop.CTV.1.15.25
	0014_1_RESOLUTION AWTF HypochloriteTankReplacement FINAL
	0014_2_250128 Finance Memo - Emergency Hypochlorite Tank Replacement_FINAL
	0014_3_0046 - Tank Repair - DG Memo to Finance 01-25-2025.pdf
	0015_1_Fabick CAT Sole Source - Finance
	0015_2_250115_SoleSource_Fabick_Generator_Controls
	0016_1_2025 Grant Budget Transfer
	0017_1_NSG Request for Approval 1-8-2025
	0018_1_Groome 2025 Sole Source - Finance
	0018_2_250115_SoleSource_Groome_Hydroblasting
	0019_1_H-25 Contract Award Form and Bid Tabs
	H-25 Contract Award Form
	H-25 BID TABS




